# CONSTITUTION ARUNACHAL CA ESTD: 1997

ARUNACHAL CRICKET ASSOCIATION (ACA)
Regd .No .SR/ITA/410



Affiliated under Board of Control for Cricket in India

#### **Head Office:**

R.W. D. COLONY NEAR GARDEN DEW School, Papum Pare District, Itanagar, Arunachal Pradesh-791111

Certified True Copy

Page | 1

Honorary President Arunachal Cricket Registrar of Societies Govt. of Arunachsi Pi

# **CONTENT**

Contents				
1.	NAME OF THE SOCIETY:	4		
2.	HEADQUARTERS:	4		
3.	AREA OF OPERATION:	4		
4.	AIMS & OBJECTIVES OF THE ASSOCIATION	4		
5.	INTERPRETATION OF TERMS:	5		
6.	COMPOSITION AND MEMBERSHIP:	7		
7.	MEMBERSHIP AND AFFILIATION:	7		
8.	RENEWAL OF MEMBERSHIP:	8		
9.	TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP AND AFFILIATION:	8		
10.	RE-ADMISSION AND RE-AFFILIATION:	8		
11.	OBLIGATIONS OF AFFILIATED DISTRICT ASSOCIATIONS:	9		
12.	APEX COUNCIL	9		
13.	ELECTION & TERM OF OFFICE – BEARERS:	10		
14.	DISQUALIFICATIONS:	11		
15.	VACANCIES:	12		
16. ALL POWERS OF GOVERNANCE, MANAGEMENT AND DECISION-MAKING SHALL VEST IN THE				
GEN	NERAL BODY:	12		
17.	POWERS AND DUTIES OF APEX COUNCIL:	13		
18.	POWERS & FUNCTIONS OF OFFICE BEARERS:	14		
19.	THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER:	17		
20.	SUB-COMMITTEES:	19		
21.	FUNCTIONS AND POWERS OF SUB-COMMITTEE.	20		
22.	APPEAL:	21		
23.	BANK ACCOUNT:	21		
24.	SUIT & LEGAL PROCEEDINGS:	22		
25.	ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:	22		
26.	SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING: Corning True Copy	22		
	de soul	ge   2		

Itanagar



27.	MEETING OF THE APEX COUNCIL:	23
28.	NOTICE OF MEETINGS:	23
29.	CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING:	23
30.	QUORUM:	24
31.	ADJOURNED MEETINGS:	24
32. VOTIN	REPRESENTATION IN ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND SPECIAL GENERAL MEETINGS AND NG:	24
33.	RESPONSIBILITY OF INDIVIDUAL MEMBERS, AFFILIATED MEMBERS/ OFFICIALS/ PLAYERS:	25
34.	LAWS OF THE GAME:	26
35.	ELIGIBILITY OF PLAYERS:	26
36.	THE ELECTORAL OFFICER:	27
37.	TRANSPARENCY:	27
38.	CONFLICT OF INTREST:	28
39.	THE ETHICS OFFICER:	28
40.	THE OMBUDSMAN:	29
41.	GRIEVANCE REDRESSAL:	29
42.	INTERPRETATION OF RULES:	31
43.	COLOURS AND CREST:	31
44.	AMENDMENT OF RULES:	31
45.	DISSOLUTION OF THE ASSOCIATION:	32

Registrar of Societies
Govt. of Arunachal Pradesh
Itanagar

Page | 3

## **ARUNACHAL CRICKET ASSOCIATION (ACA)**

## **RULES AND REGULATIONS**

#### 1. NAME OF THE SOCIETY:

The Association is called the "ARUNACHAL CRICKET ASSOCIATION" herein after called as A.C.A.

#### 2. HEADQUARTERS:

The Headquarters of the A.C.A. shall be at R.W.D Colony, Near Garden Dew, Itanagar Arunachal Pradesh.

#### 3. AREA OF OPERATION:

The Jurisdiction of the A.C.A. shall extend over the entire State of ARUNACHAL.

#### 4. AIMS & OBJECTIVES OF THE ASSOCIATION:

- To promote, encourage, organize and control the game of cricket throughout the State of Arunachal Pradesh.
- To admit bonafide District Cricket Associations as members of the Arunachal Cricket
   Association and to administer/manage the game of Cricket in the State of Arunachal.
- To arrange, organize and regulate representative matches in the State with teams
  representing the Association and also approved matches of ACA and to select such teams for
  any tournament, championship or fixture, local and otherwise.
- 4. To foster a spirit of sportsmanship and co-operation among the members, officials and players, and others and to educate them regarding the same.
- To advance and safeguard the interest of the game of cricket.
- To hold and maintain the Laws of Cricket and the Rules and Regulations of the Board of Control for Cricket in India.
- 7. To publish cricket journals, magazines and literature on cricket for the benefit of the affiliated units and the cricket loving public of the State.

Certified True Copy

Page |

Honorary President Arunachal Cricket

Govt of Arunacha

- 8. To spread the game of cricket throughout the State by organizing coaching schemes, tournaments and exhibition matches.
- To promote, encourage, organize and develop the game of cricket in schools and colleges in the State.
- To maintain a panel of approved umpires and to do such acts as may be deemed necessary for the purpose.
- 11. To acquire, by lawful means, movable and immovable properties on behalf of the Association and to utilize the income, funds and properties of the Association for the promotion and fulfillment of all or any of the objects of the Association.
- 12. To encourage the formation of District Associations for the control of the game of cricket in such territory as may be assigned to them by the Association and to assist and co-ordinate their activities.
- 13. To add, alter, maintain and enforce the Rules and Regulations for the control of the game of cricket and governance of the same in the State of Arunachal and to maintain discipline among its members, players and officials.
- 14. To donate to any charitable cause.
- 15. To introduce a scheme of professionalism and to implement the same.
- 16. To strive for sportsmanship and professionalism in the game of Cricket and its governance and administration; inculcate principles of transparency and ethical standards in players, team officials, umpires and administrators; and to ban doping, age fraud, sexual harassment and all other forms of inequity and discrimination;
- To select teams to represent Arunachal in the various tournaments of the Board of Control for Cricket in India in all formats as the Board may decide from time to time.
- 18. To collect funds and wherever necessary, borrow with or without security and to purchase, redeem or pay of any such security.
- 19. To do all such acts and things as shall be deemed by the Association to be lawful, incidental or conducive to the carrying out of the objects of the Association.

### 5. INTERPRETATION OF TERMS:

In these rules unless the context otherwise requires

Certified True Copy

Him W

Page | 5

Govt. of Agunachal

- a) "Apex Council" shall mean the Governing Body tasked with management of the affairs of the Association.
- b) 'Association' shall mean Arunachal Cricket Association.
- c) 'Constitution' shall mean and include the Bye-Laws and Rules & Regulations of the Arunachal Cricket Association.
- d) "Office Bearers' shall mean the President, the Vice-President, the Honorary Secretary, Hony. Jt. Secretary and the Honorary Treasurer.
- e) 'Financial Year' shall mean the period from the 1st of April in a year to the 31st of March of the following year.
- f) 'Season' shall mean the playing season commencing the 15th of September in a year and ending normally on the 30th of June of the following year.
- g) 'Tournament' shall mean cricket league and knock out tournaments conducted by or with the approval of the Arunachal Cricket Association.
- h) 'Player' shall mean a cricketer duly registered with ACA/ affiliated units.
- i) 'Individual Member' shall mean Life Member and Former International Player Member.
- j) 'Affiliated Member' shall mean District Associations directly affiliated to ACA Institutions under Rule 6.
- k) 'District Association' shall mean an organization which conducts and regulates the game of cricket in any Revenue District of Arunachal and to which at least five clubs, playing the game of cricket, are affiliated.
- 1) 'State' shall mean the State of Arunachal.
- m) 'Board' shall mean the Board of Control for Cricket in India.
- n) 'A.C.A.' shall mean the Arunachal Cricket Association.
- 0) 'Member' shall mean affiliated members and former International Player Member.
- p) "CEO" is the Chief Executive Officer of the ACA appointed by the Apex Council as set out in Rule 19.
- q) "CONFLICT OF INTEREST" refers to situations where an individual associated with the BCCI in any capacity acts or omits to act in a manner that brings, or is perceived to bring the interest of the

Certified True Copy

Page | 6

Honorary President Arunachal Cricket

Registrar of Societies Govt of Arunachal Pradesh Itanagar individual in conflict with the interest of the game of cricket and that may give rise to apprehensions of, or actual favoritism, lack of objectivity, bias, benefits (monetary or otherwise) or linkages, as set out in Rule 39.

- r) "CRICKET PLAYERS' ASSOCIATION" refers to state Chapter of the Cricket players' Association as per the BCCI constitution.
- s) "ELECTORAL OFFICER" is the person appointed to conduct, supervise and deal with issues concerning elections as set out in Rule 36.
- t) "ETHICS OFFICER" is the person appointed to administer the Conflict of Interest principles as set out in Rule 39

#### 6. COMPOSITION AND MEMBERSHIP:

The Association shall consist of the following categories of members.

- a) A chief Patron/Chief Advisor to be nominated by the general body.
- b) Life Members: Persons residing in the State of Arunachal and above the age of 18 duly enrolled as members as per Rule 7 and former National/State Players hailing from the State of Arunachal. Life members shall have no voting rights.
- C) District Associations: District Associations in the State having at least 5 local cricket clubs affiliated to it and at least 100 registered players both male and female having been duly enrolled as member as per clause Affiliate District Associations shall have voting rights.
- d) Former International Player Members: Former International Players (men and women) hailing from Arunachal shall be granted automatic membership. Such Former International Player Members shall have voting rights and shall have the right to contest in any election.

#### 7. MEMBERSHIP AND AFFILIATION:

1. Application for Life Membership shall be submitted to the Honorary Secretary in the prescribed form together with the respective fees as under:

i) Life Member

: Rs 25,000/- in a lump sum

ii) District Association

Affiliation fee

: Rs 1000/- Per Person

**Certified True Copy** 

Page | 7

Registrar of Socie

Itanagar

Capitation fee

: Rs 50/- per affiliated unit per season.

- 2. The Honorary Secretary shall place before the Apex Council all applications received for membership/affiliation for disposal. The Apex Council shall have the power to admit or reject applications for membership/affiliation without assigning any reason.
- 3. All admissions of new members shall be subject to ratifications in the succeeding Annual General Meeting of the Arunachal Cricket Association. In the event of rejection of an application, the fees deposited shall be refunded within a fortnight from the date of decision by the Apex Council.
- 4. New District Associations desirous of seeking affiliation must possess a constitution of their own which must be sent to the A.C.A. along with the list of Office-bearers, Registration number if any, and full report of the activities of the Association.
- Affiliation/ Life Membership fee shall not be altered unless such alteration is approved and passed at the Annual or Special General Meeting.
- 6. Notwithstanding anything contained hereinabove in this Rule 7, applications for membership under the category of Former International Player shall be made to the Honorary Secretary and shall be deemed to have been accepted within 7 days there from provided the applicant is a former international player (male or female) hailing from Arunachal and has not opted for membership of any other association.

#### 8. RENEWAL OF MEMBERSHIP:

The affiliation fee and other dues, if any, of the members shall become payable on the 1st of April each year.

#### 9. TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP AND AFFILIATION:

- a. Membership of the Association shall terminate for any of the following reasons.
  - I. By resignation or death.
  - II. By any disciplinary action taken by the Apex Council/Ombudsman.
  - III. By failure to attend even one General Body meeting in five consecutive years.
- b) Notwithstanding any action taken by the Apex Council in (a) (ii) above, it shall have full powers to take legal steps against such defaulter for the recovery of the dues of the Association.

Certified True Copy

Page | 8

Honorary President
Arunachal Cricket

Govt. of Arunachal Frade

Hanae

#### 10. RE-ADMISSION AND RE-AFFILIATION:

Any Affiliated member ceasing to be a member of the Association for any reason other than under clause 9(a)(iii), may be eligible for re-affiliation provided all arrears of affiliation and/ or of other dues if any, up to the date of the application for re-affiliation have been settled in full, subject to the approval of the Apex Council.

#### 11.OBLIGATIONS OF AFFILIATED DISTRICT ASSOCIATIONS:

- a) To organize at least one institutional Cricket League and one General Cricket League amongst the Affiliated Institutions and Clubs within their jurisdiction.
- b) To organize at least one Senior and one Junior Coaching Camp in each year.
- c) To hold one Umpires examination and one Umpires seminar in each year and submit report of activities of the District Association to the A.C.A.
- d) To participate in all the tournament organized by A.C.A. in each year. Failure on their part to comply with the above mentioned obligations shall be reported to the Apex Council by the Honorary Secretary, which may decide to take appropriate steps against defaulting District Association.
- e) To furnish a list of registered players of the District Association to the A.C.A. every year by 30th June of the year with the details of their registration in prescribed form.
- f) Any affiliated member whose affiliation fees or any other dues are in arrears, may not be allowed to take part in any meeting or participate in other activities of the A.C.A. Notice to such defaulting Association shall have to be served from the A.C.A. by giving them at least 10 days notice to clear their dues within 30th June of the year. These defaulting members who clear up their arrear dues within the prescribed date of 30th June may be allowed to participate in the meeting and activities of the A.C.A. Such defaulting Associations who fail to respond to the Notice of the A.C.A. to clear their dues within the prescribed period of 30th June shall be considered as disaffiliated members of the A.C.A. However, their case of re affiliation may be considered by the A.C.A. if they apply for re affiliation after clearing all their dues.

12.APEX COUNCIL

Registrar of Societies
Govt. of Arunachal Pradesh

Page | 9

- a) The affairs of the Association shall be conducted, managed and administered by a Governing Body called the Apex Council which shall be constituted as follows:
  - (i) The President
  - (ii) The Vice-President
  - (iii) The Honorary Secretary
  - (iv) The Joint Secretary
  - (v) The Honorary Treasurer
- b) One member to be elected by the Affiliated District Associations and the Former International Player Members at the Annual General Meeting.
- c) Two representatives of players, one male and one female, to be nominated by the Cricket Players' Associations from amongst those of its members who hail from Arunachal.
- d) One person to be nominated by the Account General of Arunachal from among the serving senior functionaries of the office, co-terminus with the nominee's tenure.
- e) Each of the elected members of the Apex Council shall have a term of 3 years in Office, subject to a maximum of 3 Terms on the Apex Council. A member of the Apex Council who has held any post for two consecutive terms either in the association or in the BCCI (or a combination of both) shall not be eligible to contest any further election without completing a cooling off period of three years. During the cooling off period, such a member of the Apex Council shall not be a member of the Governing Council or of any committee/subcommittee whatsoever of the BCCI or of the Association. The expressions 'member of the Apex Council' should not be permitted to be circumvented by being a member of any other committee/sub-committee or of the Governing Council in BCCI or the Association, as the case may be.
- f) The first meeting of the Apex Council shall also be attended by the outgoing members of the Apex Council to hand over the charge.

## 13.ELECTION & TERM OF OFFICE - BEARERS:

- a) The following office bearers of the association shall be elected by voting members of the association from amongst their representatives at an Annual General Meeting.
  - (i) The President
  - (ii) The Vice-President
  - (iii) The Honorary Secretary

Certified True Copy

Govt. of Arunachal

Page | 10

- (iv) The Joint Secretary
- (v) The Honorary Treasurer

Certified True Copy

Registrar of Societies Govt. of Arunachal Pradesh Itanagar

Page | 11



b) The term of an office bearer shall be three years. Their position shall be Honorary. However, president may call election before the expiry of the three years' term.
(Note: The end of any year will be construed to be the date of the AGM for that year, to be held

according to the provisions of rule 25.)

No office bearer shall be an office bearer for more than 3 terms in all.

c) Any office bearer who has held any post for two consecutive terms either in the Association or in the BCCI (or a combination of both) shall not be eligible to contest any further election without completing a cooling off period of three years. During the cooling off period, such an office bearer shall not be a member of the Governing Council or of any committee/ subcommittee whatsoever of the BCCI or of the Association. The expressions 'office bearer' should not be permitted to be circumvented by being a member of any other committee/sub-committee or of the Governing Council in BCCI or the Association, as the case may be.

#### 14.DISQUALIFICATIONS:

- A person shall be disqualified from being an Office Bearer, a member of the Governing Council BCCI or member of the Apex Council or any Committee/Sub Committee or a representative to the BCCI if he or she:
- a) is not a citizen of India;
- b) has attained the age of 70 years;
- c) is declared to be insolvent, or of unsound mind;
- d) is a Minister or Government Servant or holds a public office, except for the nominee of the Accountant General, Arunachal in the Apex Council;
- e) holds any office or post in a sports or athletic association or federation apart from cricket;
- has been an Office Bearer of the BCCI for a cumulative period of 9 years or of the Association for a cumulative period of 9 years; org) Has been charged by a Court of Law for having committed any criminal offence, i.e. an order framing charges has been passed by a court of law having competent jurisdiction. No individual, including one filling up a vacancy shall be a member of the Apex Council for more than 9 years. In the event of a member of the Apex Council completing 9 years before the expiry of his term, he shall cease to hold office on completion of 9 years. No nominated Councilor shall have more than one term of 3 years.

Registrar of Societies
Govt. of Aruno

Page | 12

2. Notwithstanding anything contained elsewhere in these Rules, a former President of the Association shall not be entitled to be elected or nominated to the Apex Council in any capacity except for a second and final term as President, subject to Rule 13 and 14(2) above.5. No member of the Apex Council, once elected, shall hold any office in an Affiliated Member. The Affiliated Member shall take steps to fill up the vacancy so created immediately.

#### **15.VACANCIES:**

Any vacancy in the Apex Council due to death, resignation, insolvency, unsoundness of mind, nomination to the BCCI or other disqualification shall be filled up for the remaining period:

- a) In the case of an elected Councilor, by elections at a Special General Body meeting of the Association convened by the Secretary for that purpose within 45 days; and
- b) In the case of a nominated Councilor, in the same manner as prescribed for the respective nominee in Rule 12 above.

# 16. ALL POWERS OF GOVERNANCE, MANAGEMENT AND DECISION-MAKING SHALL VEST IN THE GENERAL BODY:

In addition to the powers already given to the Apex Council, the General Body may delegate such power to it as it deems fit.

In addition to, and without prejudice to the generality of powers vested in it, the General Body shall have the power:

- a) To collect funds and wherever necessary borrow, with or without security, for purposes of the association and to raise loans with or without security and to purchase, redeem or pay off any such security.
- b) To review any decision of the Apex Council.
- c) Generally to do all such other acts and things as may appear to the General Body to be expedient, convenient and/or conducive to the carrying out of the above functions of the association.

Certified True Copy

Registrar of Societies Govt. of Arunachal Pradesh Itanagar

Page | 13



#### 17.POWERS AND DUTIES OF APEX COUNCIL:

- a) The Apex Council shall have all powers necessary for the management and conduct of the A.C.A. and for promotion of its objectives including the power to take all actions as may be deemed proper against affiliated members and players for the maintenance of discipline.
- b) The Apex Council shall have all the powers of the General Body and authority and discretion to do all acts and things except such acts as by these rules are expressly directed or required to be done by the General Body. Exercise of such powers, authorities and discretion shall be subject to the control and regulation of the General Body. No regulation shall retrospectively invalidate any act of the Apex Council which was otherwise valid.
- c) The Apex Council shall exercise superintendence over the CEO, the Sub- Committees in the discharge of their duties generally, and in particular, in accordance with any general or special direction of the General Body.
- d) To constitute different Sub-Committees (except the Selection Sub-Committees) that may be necessary and consider their reports and recommendations and to define their functions. The constitution of and any subsequent change in the Sub Committees shall be ratified at the following Annual General Meeting.
- e) To fill up any vacancy in the Sub-Committees (except Selection Sub-committees) till the following Annual General Meeting).
- f) To consider applications for membership/ affiliation and dispose of the same as specified in these Rules.
- g) To revise the scale of entry fee of tournaments.
- h) To control, manage, administer and expend funds and finance of the Association.
- i) To appoint Managers of the State teams or Association's teams from amongst the members of the Association.
- j) To appoint representatives to represent the Association on the Board of Control for Cricket in India or any other body or institution or organization.
- k) To recommend to the General Body any revision in Affiliation/ Life Membership fees.
- I) To approve and pass the budget for the financial year.
- m) To control and manage all grounds, properties of the Association, fix and collect charges of admission to grounds.

Certified True Copy

Aby Page | 14

Govt of Arunachal Pradesh

Honoraty President Arunachal Cricket Itanaga

- n) To take any action as may be deemed necessary and proper against affiliated/ individual members, officials & players for maintenance of discipline.
- To appoint managers/officials, clerks and other staff and fix their salaries, allowances, bonus, privileges etc. and to take disciplinary action against them or to dispense with their services.
- p) To institute or defend any action or proceedings for or against the association or against any Office-Bearer or employee of the association.
- q) To interact and consult with the Cricket Players' Association regarding representations made on their behalf.
- r) To mediate in regard to issues between Members, failing resolution of which a reference may be made to the Ombudsman.
- s) To purchase, sell and/or mortgage, exchange and/or otherwise dispose of immovable property wherever situated, in order to promote the objects of the association.
- t) To collect funds and whenever necessary borrow not exceeding 25% of the General Fund with or without security for purposes of the association and to raise loans with or without security and to purchase, redeem or pay off any such security.
- u) To frame rules regarding the appointment, service conditions and disciplinary action concerning employees and officers of the Association.
- v) To make rules generally for the management of the affairs of the Association.
- w) To do all acts and things necessary and expedient to carry out the objects of the Association and to deal with any matter not expressly specified in these Rules.

#### 18. POWERS & FUNCTIONS OF OFFICE BEARERS:

#### A) President:

The President shall preside over all meetings of the Association and shall exercise general supervision over the activities of the Association. In an emergency the President shall have the right to take all measures necessary to safeguard the interest of the Association and to carry on its activities.

B) Vice - President:

**Certified True Copy** 

Registrar of Societies Govt of Arunachal Pradesh

Itaniada

Page | 15

All powers of the President during his absence shall devolve upon the Vice-President. The Vice president shall also exercise such functions and duties as he may be empowered with by the General Body or the Apex Council.

Certified True Copy

Registrar of Societies Govt. of Arunachal Pradesh Itanagar

Page | 16



#### C) Honorary Secretary:

The Honorary Secretary shall, subject to the general control and direction of the Apex Council:

- I. Be in charge of all correspondence, records and documents and preserve them in proper order.
- II. Exercise general supervision, conduct all affairs of the Association according to the Rules but shall not deal with any matter involving any question of policy, Constitution or expenditure of the Association without the prior approval of the Apex Council.
- III. Keep and maintain the minutes of all meetings in appropriate books and cause them to be correctly recorded and confirmed.
- IV. With the concurrence of the President or in his absence the Vice-President, convene the Annual General Meeting, Special General Meeting and meetings of the Apex Council.
- V. Have custody of and maintain in proper order and condition all properties of the Association and keep an up-to-date inventory of the same.
- VI. Place before the Apex Council all applications for membership/ affiliation, re-affiliation for its consideration.
- VII. Obtain the opinion of members of the Apex Council in writing on any issue of very urgent nature and act accordingly, provided the decision is unanimous.
- VIII. Be an ex-officio member of all Sub-Committees (except Selection Sub-committees).
- IX. Convene and attend meetings of the Sub-Committees.
- X. Prepare every year the Annual Report of the Association and present the same at the Annual General Meeting after the same is duly approved by the General Body.
- XI. Keep an up-to-date register of all members.
- XII. Define duties and functions of officers, clerks and other employees and exercise general supervision over them.
- XIII. The Honorary Secretary shall present a budget in consultation with Honorary Treasurer in the first meeting of the Apex Council and obtain approval of the same by the Apex Council.
- XIV. Call a meeting of the Apex Council at least once in three months.
- XV. Be responsible for collection of affiliation fees and other dues and deposit all money into the account of the Association with bank within 48 hours of receipt.

Certified True Copy

Registrar of Societies Govt. of Arunachal Pradesh

Page | 17

#### D) Honorary Treasurer:

The Honorary Treasurer shall, subject to the general control and direction of the Apex Council.

- i. Issue receipts for all payments received and maintain proper accounts.
- Make payments of bills duly scrutinized and passed by the Honorary Secretary and approved by the President and / or the Apex Council.
- iii. Make no payment unless the item has already been sanctioned in the annual budget or subsequently by the Apex Council.
- iv. Deposit all money, as and when received, into the account of the Association, with the bank within 48 hours of receipt.
- v. Place before the Apex Council, once every month, the financial position of the Association.
- vi. Be responsible along with the Honorary Secretary for placing the accounts of the Association for audit.
- vii. Be responsible along with the Honorary Secretary for placing the audited Statement of Accounts of the Association before the Apex Council for its consideration prior to its presentation to the General Body.

#### E) Honorary Joint Secretary:

The Honorary Joint Secretary shall

- Assist the Honorary Secretary in the discharge of his duties and do all such acts and things as may
  be directed by the Apex Council and the Honorary Secretary from time to time.
- II. Convene and keep minutes of the Committees that may be placed in his charge at the Annual General Meeting or by the Secretary.

#### 19. THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER:

- I. The day-to-day management of the affairs of the association including operations, technical, human resources and finance shall be conducted by a full time CEO under the supervision of the Apex Council to be appointed by the Apex Council who shall be a professional with management experience of at least 5 years on a similar post.
- II. The appointment of the CEO shall be ratified by the general body and

Certified True Copy

Page | 18

Honorary President Arunachal Cricket

Association

- III. The tenure and service conditions shall be such as may be specified in writing in a contract to be executed between the association and the appointee.
- IV. The CEO shall have the following functions on behalf of the Association:
- 1.To implement all the Rules and Regulations made by the General Body and the Apex Council in regard to non cricketing matters.
- 2.Subject to approval by the Apex Council, to issue guidelines in respect of travel, accommodation, allowances, etc., to be paid to players, support staff and officials participating in matches, other than international matches.
- 3.To ensure that all measures are adopted to eliminate any form of racial, communal, casteist or other hatred from the game, with stringent action taken against the offenders including the initiation of criminal proceedings.
- 4.To provide. at stadiums, wholesome and hygienic food and beverages at affordable rates, dean and hygienic restrooms for all genders and for the differently-abled, adequate fire and emergency entries and corridors, sufficient access avenues and wheelchairs for the differently-abled, proper signage, parking and transport facilities as well as efficient security systems.
- 5.To frame guidelines generally for the convenience and ease of day-to-day management of affairs of the Association subject to the approval of the Apex Council.
- 6.To assist the Sub-Committees and facilitate the implementation of their tasks and recommendations.
- 7.To report to the Apex Council on the functioning of the management of the association.
- 8.To examine all the expenditure exceeding the budget and to control such outlays as are required for the proper administration of the Association.
- 9.To advise the association regarding the investments.
- 10. To do all act and things which are delegated by the association or the Apex Council to him, and all other functions as are necessary and expedient to carry out the objects of the association as aforesaid including carry on correspondence in the name of the association.

**Certified True Copy** 

Registrar of Societies Govt. of Arunachal Pradesh

Page | 19

lianaga

#### 20. SUB-COMMITTEES:

- i. The Apex Council shall at its first meeting or at any subsequent meeting constitute the following Sub-Committees referred to in Rule 21 below (except the Selection Sub-Committees), each having a Chairman. Members of the Sub Committees need not necessarily be members of the Apex Council. However, the Sub-Committees so constituted shall necessarily include the Honorary Secretary as an ex-officio member with the power to vote.
- ii. Each Sub-Committee shall consist of not less than three and not more than five members including the Chairman and ex-officio member. The Umpires Committee shall consist of only former umpires.
- iii. The Selection Sub-Committees (i.e. Men's Senior, Men's Junior and Women's) shall be appointed by the Cricket Advisory Sub-Committee and each Selection Sub-Committee shall have a Chairman. The Selection Sub-Committee shall comprise only of former cricketers. Notwithstanding anything contained in Rule 20(iv) below, the Honorary Secretary/ Honorary Joint Secretary shall call a meeting of any Selection Sub-Committee only in consultation with the Chairman of the said Selection Sub-Committee. No person who has been a member of any Selection Sub-Committee for a total of 5 years shall be eligible to be a member of any Selection Sub-Committee. Each Selection Sub-Committee shall appoint a Captain, who shall be an ex-Officio member of the relevant Selection Sub-Committee but shall not be entitled to vote. In the event of there being an equality of votes for the appointment of a Captain, the Chairperson shall have a casting vote. In the event of there being no majority agreement over the selection of the players, the Captain's wishes in that regard shall prevail.
- iv. Meetings of every Sub-Committee shall ordinarily be convened by the Honorary Secretary or in his absence by the Honorary Joint Secretary, giving 48 hours clear notice to the members, except in case of emergency.
- v. All Sub-Committees (except Selection Sub-Committees) shall remain responsible to the Apex Council. The selection sub-Committees shall be responsible to the General Body.

Registrar of Societies
Govt of Arunachai Pradesh

Page | 20

#### 21.FUNCTIONS AND POWERS OF SUB-COMMITTEE.

#### a. Tournament Sub-Committee:

- I. To deal with all matters relating to tournaments.
- II. To frame rules and playing conditions for the conduct of different tournaments and to frame rules for eligibility and registration of players.
- III. To hear and dispose of complaints and protest, in connection with matches.
- IV. To take necessary steps to co-ordinate the staging of all representative matches.

#### b. Umpire Sub-Committee:

Each member of the Umpire Sub-Committee shall have been a former umpire. No person may be a member of this Committee for more than 5 years. The senior most umpires shall be the Chairperson of the Committee. The Committee shall have the following functions:

- I. To deal with matters relating to umpire.
- II. To conduct examinations for recruitment of umpires.
- III. To hold seminars and clinics for improvement of the standards of umpiring.
- IV. To prepare a panel of qualified umpires and classify umpires according to their competence for ACA domestic tournament.
- V. To recommend bye-laws governing the conduct of umpires.

#### c. Rules Revision Sub-Committee:

To consider and recommend, when necessary, additions and alterations, to the Rules and Regulations of the Associations.

#### d. The Cricket Advisory Sub-Committee:

Shall only comprise of former cricket players of the association) and shall have the following functions:

- I. To appoint the Men's Senior Selection Committee, Men's Junior Selection Committee and the Women's Selection Committee as per Rule 20(iii).
- II. To recommend the names of players for coaching and for net practice.
- III. To advise the Selection Sub-Committees regarding the appointment of captains.

Registrar of Societies
Govt. of Arunachal Pradesh

Page | 21

#### e. District Sub-Committee:

- To perform such duties and responsibilities as may be entrusted and delegated by the Apex Council from time to time to carry out the objectives of the Association.
- ii. To appoint a District Selection Committee (which shall only comprise of former cricket players of the association) to select the District teams for the different tournaments and matches.
- iii. With the concurrence of the Chairman, District Sub-Committee the Convener, District Sub-Committee shall convene the meetings of the District Sub-Committee.

#### f. Disciplinary-Sub-Committee.

- To inquire into instances of misconduct or violation of the Rules and Regulations by any member, player, Umpire, team official, selector and any other person associated with the association.
- To inquire into and recommend appropriate disciplinary action against the employees/staff
  of the association in cases of misconduct or any other violation of the service conditions.

#### 22.APPEAL:

An appeal against the decision of the Tournament Sub-Committee may be made to the Apex Council in writing stating specifically the grounds on which it is based. Such appeal shall be submitted to the Honorary Secretary within 72 hours of the communication of the decision to which it relates. The decision of the Apex Council shall be final and binding on the parties concerned.

#### 23.BANK ACCOUNT:

Accounts shall be opened in the name of the Association in such scheduled Bank(s) as may be approved by the Apex Council and ratified by the General Body and shall be operated by any two of the following Office Bearers, namely, the President, the Honorary Secretary and the Honorary Treasurer.

High

Registrar of Societies Govt. of Arunachal Pradesh Page | 22

#### 24.SUIT & LEGAL PROCEEDINGS:

The Association shall sue and be sued in the name of the Honorary Secretary.

#### **25.ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:**

- a) The Annual General Meeting of the Association shall be held every year not later than 30<sup>th</sup> September at such place and time as the President may fix. The Honorary Secretary shall issue nine clear days notice to all bona fide members, with the agenda specifying the business to be transacted at the meeting. A copy of the Annual Report and the audited Statement of Accounts of the previous year shall accompany the notice.
- b) Annual General Meeting shall transact the following business:
  - i. Confirm the proceedings of the previous Annual General Meeting, and Special General Meeting, if any.
  - ii. Consider any business due notice whereof has been given under the Rules.
  - iii. Receive and adopt the Annual Report.
  - Receive and adopt the audited Statement of Accounts.
  - v. Elect the Office Bearers, the other members of the Apex Council in the year the elections are due.
  - vi. Appoint the Auditor.
  - vii. Appoint Ethics Officer and the Ombudsman.
  - a) Appointment of Selection Subcommittees.
  - b) Notice for any motion/ resolution intended to be discussed at the Annual General Meeting shall be submitted in writing to the Honorary Secretary at least four clear days before the date fixed for the Annual General Meeting and shall be discussed by the Apex Council before it is placed at the Annual General Meeting. Under special circumstances, however, the Chairman may, at his discretion, allow a resolution to be moved in the Annual General Meeting without notice.

#### **26.SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING:**

- a)A Special General Meeting may be called at any time by any of the following procedures:
  - i. By order of the President.
  - ii. By a decision of the Apex Council.

Certified Irue Copy

Itanagar

Page | 23

Honorary President Arunachal Cricket

Association

- iii. By requisition signed by not less than one third of the total number of bona fide members of the Association.
- b) All resolutions intended to be moved at such meetings requisitioned under clause (a) (iii) shall be submitted in writing to the Honorary Secretary along with the requisition.
- c) Not less than five clear days' notice shall be given by the Honorary Secretary to all bon fide members for a Special General Meeting, in which no business, other than the business specified in the agenda, shall be discussed and considered.

#### 27.MEETING OF THE APEX COUNCIL:

- a. The Apex Council shall meet at least once in three months.
- b. Meeting of the Apex Council may be convened at any time by the President or the Honorary Secretary and also upon a requisition signed by at least five members of the Apex Council.
- c. At least three clear days notice shall be given to members of the Apex Council except in the case of emergent meeting. The agenda of the meeting shall be sent along with the notice.

#### 28.NOTICE OF MEETINGS:

- Notice and papers in connection with all Annual and Special General Meetings shall be sent to the bona fide members through electronic mail and publication in two newspapers having statewide coverage.
- ii. Notice of the meetings of the Apex Council shall be given by electronic mail. Accidental omission to give such notice to any bona fide members, non-receipt or late receipt thereof for any reason shall not invalidate the proceedings of any meeting.

#### 29.CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING:

The President of the Association or in his absence the Vice-President shall be the Chairman of the Annual and Special General Meetings and the meetings of the Apex Council. In the absence of the President and the Vice-President the Chairman shall be elected at the meeting.

Registrar of Societies
Govt. of Arunachal Pradesh

Page | 24

#### 30.QUORUM:

- a. At least 07 bona fide members or at least three fourth of the total number of bona fide members of the Association (whichever is less) present in person shall form a quorum at the Annual or Special General Meeting.
- b. At least 5 members (including at least two elected members who are not Office Bearers) present in person shall form a quorum at a meeting of the Apex Council.
- c. At least 3 members present in person shall form a quorum at the meeting of a Sub-Committee.

#### **31.ADJOURNED MEETINGS:**

- a. If the Annual or Special General Meeting falls through for want of quorum or is dissolved for any other reason it shall be adjourned to some other date. A fresh notice shall be given for the said Annual or Special General Meeting fixing another date within thirty days of such adjourned meeting. The provision of nine/five clear days' notice as contained in clause 25 (a) and clause 26 (c), for Annual/ Special General Meeting respectively shall not apply in such cases. No quorum is necessary for such adjourned meeting and the bona fide members present, whatever is their number, shall be competent to transact the business of the agenda.
- b. If the Special General Meeting requisitioned under clause 26(a) (iii) falls through for want of quorum, a fresh requisition for a special General Meeting shall be necessary.
- c. If the meeting of the Apex Council falls through for want of quorum or is dissolved for any other reason, it shall be adjourned to some other date. A fresh notice shall be given for the said meeting. The provision of three clear days' notice as contained in clause 27(c) shall not apply in such cases. No quorum is necessary for such adjourned meeting. No fresh agenda shall be included in such adjourned meeting.

32.REPRESENTATION IN ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND SPECIAL GENERAL MEETINGS AND VOTING:

Registrar of Societies
Govt. of Arunachal Pracesh

Page | 25

Each Affiliated Member and each Former International Player Member shall have the right to take part in the deliberations at an Annual and Special General Meetings and shall have power to vote and shall be eligible for election to any office of the Association subject to the following:

- i. An Affiliated Member must not have failed to pay any dues to the Association (other than its affiliation fee for the current financial year) on or before 30th June.
- ii. In case of an Affiliated Member, the elected President will be eligible to vote and, in his/ her absence, the elected Honorary Secretary will be allowed to do so. However, the elected Honorary Secretary (or his/ her equivalent) will be given Priority over the nominated or exofficio President (or his/ her equivalent) of an Affiliated Member in the matter of voting. Proposals raised at the Annual and Special General Meeting shall be decided by a majority of votes.
  - a. Voting shall be by secret ballots.
  - b. The Chairman shall have a casting vote.
  - c. There shall be no proxy vote.

## 33.RESPONSIBILITY OF INDIVIDUAL MEMBERS, AFFILIATED MEMBERS/ OFFICIALS/ PLAYERS:

- a) Individual/ Affiliated members/ officials/ players shall not indulge in such act, behavior or conduct that may bring the Association to disrepute or may be considered prejudicial or in way undesirable to the interest of the Association.
- b) The Association shall not interfere with the normal business or management of any affiliated member, but it shall have the right to call for an explanation/ to take action, if necessary, against any affiliated member for infringement of the Rules of the Association.
- Every affiliated member shall forward to the Association, each year, the names and addresses
  of its Office Bearers.
- d) Every Affiliated member shall release players selected by the Association for Inter-State and other representative matches.
- e) Every Affiliated member having a ground shall place its ground in proper playing condition at .

  the disposal of the Association for tournaments and other matches arranged by the Association.

Page | 26

Honorary President Arunachal Cricket

Association

f) No Affiliated member shall run any tournament in its area without the prior approval of the

g) No Affiliated member or its registered players shall take part in any tournament, which is not run by the Association, without prior approval of the Apex Council. This Rule shall not be applicable to University/College/School/Office teams participating in bona fide Inter-University/Inter-Collegiate/Inter-School/Inter-Office tournaments.

#### 34.LAWS OF THE GAME:

The laws of Cricket framed by International Cricket Council from time to time and accepted by the Board of Control for Cricket in India and the rules of the Board shall be observed by this Association. However, the Association shall have power to amend the rules to suit local conditions.

#### 35. ELIGIBILITY OF PLAYERS:

a. Affiliated members participating in the tournament shall field teams consisting of bona fide and eligible players.

b. No suspended player of the Association or the Board shall be eligible to play for any affiliated member in any tournament registered with the Association, during the period of his suspension. Infringement of this rule shall also be a disqualification for the affiliated member concerned.

c. No player participating in any match within the jurisdiction of the Board or the Association shall comment on the match either in the press, on the radio or on the television.

d. For participation in the tournament a player should have resided in the State of Arunachal for a minimum period of six months. This rule is not applicable to students; bona fide employees of institution registered with the association with a minimum service of 30 days, a player born in Arunachal and individual member of the Association.

e. For representing the State in Board tournaments a player must be duly registered with an Affiliated member of ACA and shall have played for at least one season in the State in a

> CopyPage | 27 Certified True

Honorary President Arunachal Cricket

Association

- tournament/ tournaments conducted by ACA or any of its Affiliated member prior to his selection. This shall not apply to a player who is currently playing for the country or zone.
- f. Eligibility rules as laid down by the Tournament Sub-Committee from time to time shall be observed by the Association.

Certified True Copy

Page | 28

Honorary President
Arunachal Cricket
Association

Registrar of Societies
Govt. of Arunachal Pradesh

#### **36.THE ELECTORAL OFFICER:**

- At least four weeks prior to the Annual General Meeting at which an election is to be held, the Apex Council shall appoint an Electoral Officer, who shall be a former Central or State Election Commissioner.
- The Electoral Officer shall oversee and supervise the entire election process including scrutiny of the electoral rolls for the Apex Council which shall include all nominations and candidatures being subject to his scrutiny in accordance with the Rules.
- 3. In case of any dispute or objection as to candidacy, disqualification, eligibility to vote, or the admission or rejection of a vote in the elections to the Apex Council or any of the committees/sub-committees, the Electoral Officer shall decide the same and such decision shall be final and conclusive.

#### 37.TRANSPARENCY:

- The Memorandum of Association, Rules and Regulations and all other resolutions, orders and memorandum of the Association shall be available on the Website of the association.
- 2. All payments and expenditures made by the association which is in excess of Rs. 25 lac shall be enumerated and uploaded on the website.
- 3. All proceedings and conclusions of the Ombudsman and the Electoral Officer shall be uploaded on the Website of the association annually.
- 4. The audited accounts, balance sheets, profit & loss accounts and annual reports shall be uploaded on the Website of the association.
- All notices on or behalf of the association including tenders for goods and services, for contractual arrangements and the like shall be promptly uploaded on the Website of the association.
- 6. The website of the Association shall have dedicated links to all the stadia in the State which host international matches, along with their complete seating capacity, pricing and transparent booking procedures for all tournaments whether international, domestic or IPL. All sponsor and other free allotments shall also be disclosed, in no event being more than 10% of the entire seating capacity in any particular category.

Certified True Copy

Page | 29

Honorary President Arunachal Cricket GovL of Arunachal Prades

#### 38.CONFLICT OF INTREST:

The Provisions of Rules 38(1) to 38(5) of the BCCI Constitution shall apply mutatis mutandis to the Association.

#### 39.THE ETHICS OFFICER:

- 1. The Association shall appoint an Ethics Officer at the Annual General Meeting for the purpose of guidance and resolution in instances of conflict of interest. The Ethics Officer shall be a retired Judge so appointed by the association after obtaining his/her consent and on terms as determined by the association in keeping with the dignity and stature of the office. The term of an Ethics Officer shall be one year, subject to a maximum of 3 terms in office.
- 2. Any instance of Conflict of Interest may be taken cognizance of by the Ethics Officer:
  - a) Suo Motu
  - b) By way of a complaint in writing to the official postal or email address or
  - c) On a reference by the Apex Council
- 3. After considering the relevant factors and following the principles of natural justice, the Ethics Officer may do any of the following:
  - a) Declare the conflict as Tractable and direct that:
  - I. The person declare the Conflict of Interest as per Rule 38 or
  - II. The interest that causes the conflict be relinquished or
  - III. The person recuse from discharging the obligation or duty so vested in him or her.
  - b) Declare the conflict as Intractable and direct that:
  - 1. The person is suspended or removed from his or her post or
  - II. Any suitable monetary or other penalty is imposed or
  - III. The person be barred for a specified period or for life from involvement with the game of Cricket. The Ethics Officer is wholly empowered to also direct any additional measures or restitution as is deemed fit in the Circumstances.

Registrar of Societies
Govt. of Arunachal Process
Itanagar

Page | 30

#### **40. THE OMBUDSMAN:**

- 1. The association shall appoint an Ombudsman at the Annual General Meeting for the purpose of providing an independent dispute resolution mechanism. The Ombudsman shall be a retired Judge of a High Court so appointed by the association after obtaining his/her consent and on terms as determined by the association in.... keeping with the dignity and stature of the office. The term of the Ombudsman shall be one year, subject to a maximum of 3 terms in office.
- The Apex Council shall frame Regulations regarding the discipline and conduct of the Players, Match Officials, Team Officials, Administrators, Committee Members and others associated with the BCCI.

#### **41.GRIEVANCE REDRESSAL:**

 The types of disputes/differences that form the Ombudsman's ambit and the procedures for redressed are:

#### a.Member, Association & Franchisee Disputes:

Any disputes between or among the Association, its Members and the Cricket Players' Association shall be automatically referred to the Ombudsman who shall pass appropriate orders after hearing all the parties and exercising all powers of enquiry and hearing as the Ombudsman deems fit before appropriate orders are passed.

#### b. Detriment caused by Member or Administrator:

If any Member or any Administrator of the association commits any act of indiscipline or misconduct or acts in any manner which may or likely to be detrimental to the interest of the association or the game of cricket or endanger the harmony or affect the reputation or interest of the association or refuses or neglects to comply with any of the provisions of the

Memorandum and/or the Rules and Regulations of the association and/or the Rules of conduct framed by the association, the Apex Council, on receipt of any complaint shall issue a Show Cause Notice calling for explanation and on receipt of the same and/or in case of no cause or insufficient cause being shown, refer the same to the Ombudsman who shall pass an appropriate order after providing opportunity of hearing to the parties.

c. Misconduct or Breach by Others:

Certified True Copy

High M

Registrar of Societies

Govt. of Arunachal Pradesh

Itanagar

Page | 31

In the event of any complaint being received from any quarter or based on any report published or circulated or on its own motion, of any act of indiscipline or misconduct or violation of any of the Rules and Regulations by any Player, Umpire, Team Official, Selector or any person associated with the association, the Apex Council shall refer the same within 48 hours to the Disciplinary Sub-Committee to make a preliminary enquiry.

#### Procedure:

The Disciplinary Sub-Committee shall forthwith make a preliminary inquiry and call for explanations from the concerned person(s) and submit his report to the Apex Council not later than 15 days from the date of reference being made by the Apex Council. On receipt of the report, the Apex Council shall forward the same to the Ombudsman, who shall call for all particulars and unless it decides that there is no prima facie case and accordingly drops the charge, hearing shall commence on the case and the same shall be completed as expeditiously as possible by providing a reasonable opportunity to the parties of being heard. If, despite due notice, any party fails to submit any cause or submits insufficient cause, the Ombudsman shall after providing hearing to the parties concerned, pass appropriate order. In the event any party refuses and or fails to appear despite notice, the Ombudsman shall be at liberty to precede ex-parte on the basis of the available records and evidence.

#### d) By the Public against the Arunachal Cricket Association (ACA):

Where a member of the public is aggrieved concerning ticketing and access and Facilities at stadia, the same may be brought in the form of a complaint to the Ombudsman.

#### **Procedure**

- The Ombudsman would adopt the same procedure as laid down in (c) above after referring the complaint to the Apex Council to solicit a report on the complaint.
- The place of hearing shall be decided by the Ombudsman from time to time. The Ombudsman shall have the power to impose penalties as provided in the Regulations for Players, Team Officials, Members, Managers and Match Officials of the association.
- 3. The decision of the Ombudsman shall be final and binding and shall come into force forthwith on being pronounced and delivered.
- 4. Any Administrator, Player, Match Official, Team Official, Selector or other individual associated with the association on being found guilty and expelled by the association shall forfeit all their rights and privileges. He or she shall not in future be entitled to hold any position or office or be admitted in any committee or any role on the Association.

Page | 32

 A Member on application made after expiry of three years since expulsion, be readmitted by the association, provided the same is accepted at a General Body meeting by 3/4th members present and voting.

6. Pending inquiry and proceeding into complaints or charges of misconduct or any act of indiscipline or violation of any Rules and Regulations, the concerned Member, Administrator, Player, Match Official, Team Official, or other individual associated with the association (along with their respective privileges and benefits) may be suspended by the Apex Council until final adjudication. However, the said adjudication ought to be completed within six months, failing which the suspension shall cease.

#### **42.INTERPRETATION OF RULES:**

The Apex Council shall be the sole authority for interpretation of these Rules and of the Bye-Laws framed there under and its decision on any question or its interpretation on any matter affecting the Association and not provided for in these Rules and Regulations, shall be final and binding on the members.

#### 43.COLOURS AND CREST:

The Colours of the Association shall be green. The logo of the Association shall be as depicted in the cover of these rules.

The Blazer of the Association shall be in black with the logo of the Association and the Year of award displayed on the breast pocket. The Blazer of the Association shall be worn only by those players who have played for the State, unless otherwise permitted by the Apex Council.

#### **44.AMENDMENT OF RULES:**

The Rules of the Association can be altered, amended or added to only at a Special General Meeting convened for the purpose. No amendment or alteration or addition can be made unless it is carried by a majority of at least two-thirds of the bona fide members present at the meeting.

Any such amendment will not be given effect to without the leave of the Hon'ble Supreme Court.

High High

Page | 33



#### 45.DISSOLUTION OF THE ASSOCIATION:

#### a) The Association may be dissolved:

At any Annual or Special General meeting by a resolution for dissolution passed by a majority of the bona fide members present at the meeting provided that.

- i. Such resolution shall be confirmed at a Special General Meeting held not less than one month thereafter;
- Not less than one-third of the bona fide members shall be present at such Special General Meeting.
- iii. The confirmation of the resolution for dissolution shall be passed by a majority of two-thirds of the bona fide members present.

#### b) In any case of winding up or dissolution of the Association:

If there shall remain, after satisfaction of all its debts and liabilities, any property, whatsoever, the same shall be given or transferred to some other institution or institutions having objects similar to the objects of the Association to be determined by the bona fide members of the association at the time of Dissolution.

#### c) Unless otherwise decided at the Special General Meeting

The procedure to be followed in giving effect to such a resolution of dissolution shall conform, as far as may be, to the procedure for the voluntary dissolution of similar Associations.

Registrar of Societies
Govil of Arunachal Pradesh

Page | 34

